
Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24 2014 

,0 resent: Sandra Larson, Thomas Cotter, Brittany Boothe, and Thomas Laing 

Absent: Victoria Hedenstrom 

Others: Ric Ingham, City Administrator; Kay Bark, Community Development Director; Kyle Schauer, Public 
Works Director; Chris Workman, City Recorder/Human Resources and Risk Management 
Administrator; Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder; Wayne Wymore; Sgt. Osborne, LCSO; 
Rachel Sykes; Scott Johnson, Candi Unger, Sanipac; and Craig Soderberg, Veneta Park Board 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Larson called the City Council to order at 7:35p.m. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Wayne Wymore, 25311 Hunter Rd., Veneta, OR 
Mr. Wymore said there are many benefits in having organic food and good, healthy eggs not filled 
with antibiotics, and to be self-sufficient. He wanted to ask the City to support things like that and 
thanked the Council for the opportunity to speak. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Thomas Laing seconded the motion. 
VOTE: Thomas Laing, aye; Thomas Cotter, aye; Sandra Larson, aye; Brittany Boothe, aye. 

The consent agenda as approved included minutes for February 10, 2014 Work Session, Minutes 
for February 10, 2014, Accounts Payable through February 19, 2014, and the Civic Calendar for 
March, 2014. 

4. COUNCIL BUSINESS AND REPORTS 
a. Business 

( 1) Lane County Sheriff's Office Activity Report 

Sgt. Osborne provided the Council with a report that covers the period of October 2012 
through September 2013 that includes property crime totals. He said in 2013 thefts were 
reduced, the number of stolen vehicles was reduced by half, but criminal mischief crimes were 
up. He said those responsible for tire slashing last May were identified and one young person 
was prosecuted, convicted and is paying restitution. However, authorities have not been able 
to identify the individuals that damaged the Service Center around that same time in 2013. 
Sgt. Osborne said the Lane County District Attorney's office is working with Lane County 
Sheriff's Office on the latest case of tagging and the bomb threat at Fern Ridge Middle School. 
He said the total Person Crimes, assault and menacing, were down in 2013 but sex crime 
totals were the same in 2012 and 2013. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Sgt. Osborne said when a dwelling is unlawfully 
entered with the intent to commit a crime, it's a burglary. When any building not being used as 
a dwelling is unlawfully entered, it's a Theft 1, 2, or 3 based on the total dollar value of the 
items stolen. 

Sgt. Osborne continued to review the Activity Report and reiterated the importance to not 
leave valuables in your vehicle. He said there has been a rash of car break-ins in the Perkins 
Rd. area including one theft where over $2000 worth of items were stolen from a parked 
vehicle. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24, 2014 

Page 1 



In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Sgt. Osborne said many of the crimes being 
committed are not from repeat offenders. 

Sgt. Osborne said it has been determined that alcohol was likely involved in the roll over crash 
on Poodle Creek Rd. in Noli over the weekend. He said from January 1, 2014 to date, 
deputies have made seven Drinking under the Influence of Intoxicants (DUll) arrests in 
Veneta. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Sgt. Osborne said the transition of switching the 
data dispatch system took longer than anticipated. He said previously the crime reports were 
published in the Fern Ridge Review but during the transition period the reports were not 
generated. They've just now completed the system update and soon those reports will be 
provided to the newspaper for publication again. Sgt. Osborne said he will provide staff with a 
guide to all the abbreviations used in the reports. 

(2) Public Safety Report 

Ingham introduced Rachel Sykes, who came to the City as an intern looking for some 
experience and projects. One of those projects was to delve into the data we received from 
Lane County Sheriff's Office (LCSO). He said she provided a broad look at what some of the 
data can tell us and give us the opportunity to go a little further with the data if we so wish. 

Ms. Sykes said she is a recent graduate from the University of Oregon with a degree in 
planning, public policy, and management. She said for the past several months she has been 
interning at the City and working on a couple of projects, one specifically, is highlighting the 
police activity in Veneta. She said staff was interested in an analysis of the police activity on a 
monthly, weekly, daily, and hourly basis over the course of a year. She said she gathered 
police data from the monthly activity reports and compiled it in a well-organized way that will 
give a quantifiable look at police activity. She said the results of research show how much 
crime, what kind of crime, and where and when it takes place in Veneta. She said since 2005 
the City has contracted with LCSO for four fulltime deputies and 1/3 of Sgt. Osborne's time. 

Sykes reviewed her power point presentation with the City Council. She said she organized 
the information by creating pivot tables and the information can be used for future analysis. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Sykes said each color on the chart represents 
a specific deputy. 

Sgt. Osborne said deputies work consistent shifts. He said in 2013 a couple of deputies were 
out on long term illness or injury which only left three deputies covering all the shifts. He said 
that left the schedule with no back fill. 

In response questions from Brittany Boothe, Sgt. Osborne said the deputy identified in yellow 
responds to a lot of calls but that's also the day shift. He said the time of day dictates how 
many calls are received because more people are out and about during the day. Sgt. 
Osborne said when a crime takes place at night, the deputy will make follow up calls the next 
day. 

In response to a question from Brittany Boothe, Ms. Sykes said one of the tables shown 
represents all calls and responses but a case number is not always issued. 

Sgt. Osborne said the self-initiated stops and calls coming into dispatch don't always mean a 
crime was committed or an arrest was made, but it still represents time spent. He said crimes 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24, 2014 

Page 2 



taking place at night usually get reported the next day by the homeowner when the crime is 
first noticed. 

In response to a question from Brittany Boothe, Sgt. Osborne said a DUll traffic stop takes 
about an hour to do the field sobriety and Breathalyzer test but the deputy will likely spend 
another hour or two putting together a ten page police report. 

Ingham said now that the pivot tables are correctly set up, we can extract all kinds of 
information. Also, different line charts could be made to correlate two sets of data that could 
provide trend information. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Ingham said we could have multiple year trend 
data if information was added every year to the pivot tables. He said it's time intensive but 
would be worth the effort. 

Mayor Larson thanks Ms. Sykes for her report. 

(3) Waste Management Franchise Report 

Scott Johnson and Candi Unger from Sanipac presented the Council with the annual franchise 
report. Mr. Johnson said as part of the most recent franchise renewal negotiations, Sanipac 
wanted to provide the City Council with an annual franchise report. He said the timing of the 
report is in conjunction with the Consumer Price Inflation Index. Mr. Johnson briefly 
highlighted a few points in the report. He said the yard debris cart program was initiated over 
ten years ago and the recycling cart program started six years ago. He said it's great to see 
Sanipac's relationship with the City grow. He introduced Candi Unger who put the report 
together. 

Ms. Unger reviewed the report with the City Council. She said every year Sanipac employees 
donate funds to purchase unassembled bikes and put them together for the Santa Project. 
She said last year they donated 40 bikes and every year that number increases. She said in 
2013 Sanipac had no incidents or accidents in Veneta. She said Sanipac provides the 
Opportunity to Recycle Report to DEQ on behalf of the City and it was approved by DEQ. 
Last year, 280 tons of yard debris was picked up in Veneta. In 2013, a third month of yard 
debris pick up was added; pick up was in April, May, and November. Ms. Unger said Sanipac 
served 1184 residential homes and 96 commercial customers. She said that's 83% of all 
residents and businesses in Veneta. The franchise fee paid to Veneta was almost $20,000. 
Sanipac trucks started advertising non profits organizations. She said the most recent is the 
Children's Miracle Network truck. She said Sanipac takes every opportunity to be involved in 
the communities it services. At the last City clean up, Sanipac provided 16 30 yd. roll out 
boxes, removed 165 cubic yards of yard debris, 90 cubic yards of wood, 60 cubic yards of 
metal, 30 cubic yards of tires, and seven tons of trash. Sanipac also provides weekly pick up 
from the community center, all City parks, disposes of the street sweeper box, and provides 
abatement boxes. Roll out boxes were provided to the community center, Zumwalt 
Campground, and the Harvest Festival. In 2013 Sanipac donated over $15,000 for all of these 
services to the City of Veneta. Ms. Unger's report included all the newsletters since 2011. 
She asked Council members to please contact her if they had any questions or if they would 
like any other information included in next year's report. 

Mr. Johnson said Sanipac wants to continue to be involved in City activities as much as they 
can and continue to get information out to residents. He said Sanipac is keeping an eye on a 
food waste program for Veneta and is ready for more opportunities to help in the community. 
He said Lane County is looking to increase its tipping fee by $12 per ton in July which will be 
an increase from $67 to $80 per ton. He said because most of Veneta's waste is taken to 
Coffin Butte in Corvallis, we won't see that $12 increase per tonnage but Sanipac is working 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24, 2014 

Page 3 



through the impact over the next few months. He said regarding moving forward with the 
price adjustment, when the last franchise negotiations took place, Sanipac included a rate 
index cap of 5%. He said based on the recent Consumer Price Index (CPI) of 2.5%, Sanipac 
will increase rates on the 35 gallon cart by 2.5% or about 47 cents per month. He said rate 
increase notifications will be going out to residents soon. 

Council members thanked Mr. Johnson and Ms. Unger for the report. 

(4) 2013 Annual Report from the Park Board 

Craig Soderberg, Park Board Chair, presented the 2013-14 Park Board report and goals. He 
reviewed the past events and future goals of the Park Board. He said the Park Board is 
thrilled to help with any pool events and is ready and willing to assist the City Council and staff. 
He said currently there are two vacancies on the Park Board. 

Mayor Larson said the Park Board does a great job and she's glad to see they have so much 
fun. 

b. Councilor/Committee Liaison Reports 

Thomas Cotter said he will be attending the LCOG meeting on Thursday, February 271h 

Mayor Larson said the school board is progressing with the bond. She said a resolution was 
approved at the Tuesday, February 181h board meeting which made it official that the bond 
measure would be placed on the May 2014 ballot. She said Wednesday she will attend the first 
screening session for a new superintendent. 

5. STAFF REPORTS 
a. Public Works Director............... . ...................................................... Kyle Schauer 

(1) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Renewal 

Schauer said the water discharge permit allows us to discharge the effluent from the waste 
water plant. He said every five years we need to go through the Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) process to renew the permit which gives DEQ an opportunity to 
update the requirements. He said the permit renewal was granted but the process was a little 
more difficult due to some regulation changes and recent activities the City has done. He 
said the Biosolids Management Plan and the Recycled Water Use Plan and Effluent Recycle 
Plan were completely rewritten and updated to include the acquisition of the Larson property. 
He said in the past local farmers would request the bio solids to fertilize their fields but since 
working with DEO to comply with the regulation changes, we now have enough available 
acreage to accommodate wastewater reuse for the foreseeable future. He said the bio solids 
are applied to the hay field and the hay is removed annually. He said calculations suggest 
the City will not need to add additional effluent reuse sites until the City has more than 
doubled in population. Schauer said the permit added a new requirement to monitor 
ammonia in our treated effluent at a monthly cost of $50. Not previously required, but prior to 
the next permit renewal, the City will be required to conduct a mixing zone study of the area 
where our treated effluent enters the Long Tom River. He said the zone study will take about 
a year to complete. He said this report is informational only and does not require Council 
action. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Schauer said the City contracts with a local 
farmer to remove the hay which takes away the burden of harvesting the hay ourselves. He 
said the hay crop absorbs the nutrients so it doesn't go back into the soil. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Schauer said it's not likely an intern could 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24, 2014 

Page4 



complete the study for us because it's a fairly thorough process and needs to be completed 
by an engineer. He said reviewing the three plans took about six months with the assistance 
of Paul Kennedy, Oregon DEQ compliance officer. 

b. City Recorder/HR & RM Administrator.. .. ....................... Chris Workman 
(1) Resolution No. 1139- A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF VENETA GROUP SWIM 

LESSON SCHOLARSHIP 

Workman said in the beginning funds were donated and/or excess funds were used for 
scholarships but since then that funding has gone away. He said this has been on staff's 
radar for quite some time. Staff felt a permanent scholarship program should be 
established to benefit City youth. The City currently gives out free swim coupons and the 
Council is annually approached for waiving fees for pool rentals for schools. The more 
management looked at this, the more staff felt this should become a permanent program. 
Funds from the Zumwalt fund are transferred into the Parks and Recreation Fund annually 
and used for area youth. Staff is recommending writing off the scholarships as lost pool 
revenue, similar to waiving the pool rental fee, rather than creating a new scholarship fund. 
He said the scholarships will be tracked at City Hall and the process is laid out in the 
resolution. Workman said the same low income eligibility requirements will be followed for 
the scholarships as is used for water rate reduction based on the financial information, then 
a voucher is provided for 50% reduction of a group swimming lesson session. Staff didn't 
want to put a cap on the scholarship so kids would be able to follow the next level of 
lessons. However, a cap may be placed next year if a family is using a lot of the 
scholarship funds. Staff is recommending the Council approve the formal group swim 
lesson scholarship. He said currently the fund is not getting a lot of use. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Workman said the pool rents for $100 per 
hour depending on the number of people that would be using the pool. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Workman said the first year the pool was 
open the City sponsored about $470 in scholarships but it's dramatically dropped off since 
then. 

Mayor Larson said the scholarship could be promoted. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Ingham said the $500 will be allocated as 
lost revenue instead of revenue from an actual scholarship fund. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Workman said specifically earmarking 
Zumwalt funds to be used for scholarships ends up complicating the accounting aspect and 
it's different than a fee waiver and what staff is recommending with Resolution 1139. 

Thomas Cotter said if we increase the amount of the loss, he would like to see us 
encourage kids to move on to the next swim lesson level. He said many of our aides and 
lifeguards come from area youth participating in the swim lessons. He said it's a good idea 
but he felt we need to do something to increase the number of youth we reach with this 
program in order to increase their skill level. 

Workman said last year staff recommend the Council approve $500 from the Zumwalt Fund 
to be used for scholarships, but that wasn't intended to be a permanent solution. Staff 
realized the scholarship program should become permanent as a way to increase the 
number of youth participating in lessons. He said the scholarship program will be promoted 
and advertised in the annual recreation guide and any pool publicity which should increase 
lesson participation. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24, 2014 

Page 5 



Mayor Larson said we could always increase the amount. 

Ingham said $500 should be adequate and it could be that only $200 to $300 is spent. He 
said towards the end of the season if funds are still available, scholarships could be 
increased from 50% to 100%. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1139. Brittany 
Boothe seconded the motion which passed with a vote of 4-0. 

c. City Administrator ... 
( 1) Questions from Councilors 

None 

6. OTHER 

.. ................ Ric Ingham 

Ric thanked Rachel Sykes for her presentation. He said the public safety report should provide 
opportunities for the Council to see if there's something else it would like to see. He said Ms. 
Sykes' next project will be working through some Urban Renewal Agency information. 

Ingham said the City received a fair amount of responses to the Management Analyst position. He 
said because a City employee has applied for the position, the interview panel will be changed to 
consist of the management team. Also, the branding RFP closes this Friday; two entities 
participated with the pre bid process. Ingham said he's not exactly sure what the final product will 
be. He said staff will do some initial reviews and the final decision will be up to the Council. 

Ingham said the recent power outage caused some problems with street lights on W. Broadway but 
public works is on working on a solution. 

Workman said the City is advertising for pool lifeguards. He said returning employees have been 
contacted and if interested, have been asked to submit a letter of interest. The closing date for 
accepting letters of interest and applications is March 21st 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Workman said the CPR class and in-service safety 
training is required annually but the actual lifeguard training certification is valid for two year. 

Bark said Hayden Homes submitted a subdivision application for Applegate Landing Phase Ill. Staff 
is in the process of reviewing the application with the City engineer for completeness. She said the 
application is for 50 to 90 lots. Bark said the Planning Commission could be reviewing a land use 
approval possibly in May or June. 

Ingham said we've seen a lot of activity in the West Lane Shopping Center and the level of interest 
in West Broadway has increased quite a bit. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Ingham said the scope of work with the consultant 
for running fiber optic to Cornerstone is on hold. He said the day the Council authorized staff to 
move forward, Schauer received a right-of-way permit from LS Networks to install an underground 
conduit under Highway 126 to connect to the shopping center. Staff felt that line will eventually tie 
into the Call Center. Staff has been trying to contact the engineer overseeing the LS project to 
attempt to use that conduit as one of our routes as opposed to hire our own consultant to come up 
with an alternative route. Staff is trying to get a little more information about that right-of-way 
permit. 

Ingham said SBA did not accept the Council's recommendation regarding the cell tower lease. He 
said he has not received a response from Charter regarding its renewal. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24, 2014 

Page 6 



Ingham said Workman has been working on our internet for the last few days. He said it seems 
that the firewa ll is bad and requires the system to be rebooted several times a day. Staff decided a 
new fi rewall should be ordered which should be installed by the end of the week. 

Mayor Larson said the Historical Committee reviewed three possibilities for the fi rst history plaque. 
She sa id within a month she should have something to show the Council. 

7. ADJOURN 
Mayor Larson adjourned the Veneta City Council at 9:01 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder 
(Minutes prepared by DHenneman) 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
February 24, 2014 

c_- Sa l~_~l't..:~ ?" // 

Sandra H. Larson, Mayor 

Page 7 


